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“Kaleva” is a Finnish National Epic. 
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The Motion Picture Industry

One industry was not hurt by the Great Depression. During the 1930’s motion pictures were a growth industry. After the introduction of sound in 1927, movies began to gain in popularity at the expense of Vaudeville stage shows. The Great Depression enhanced the success of the movie business since movies were cheaper than the live actors of Vaudeville. Motion pictures were one of the few industries that grew and prospered during the great depression of the 1930’s There was a great increase in the number of movie theaters. Movies became the key form of popular entertainment in the United States and continued to dominate the entertainment field until the rise of television in the 1950’s.

William Kyro noticed that there was no theater in the community of Farmington, Michigan (near Detroit). Builder and Realtor Edward Rose owned a building housing an A&P grocery store on Grand River avenue near Farmington Road. William, suggested to Mr. Rose that the store could be converted into a profitable motion picture theater. He worked out a detailed plan and contacted film distributors. Mr. Rose followed the plan, but did not invite William to be a partner. The theater was a success from the start and still exists today (2006) as a modest operating theater at the center of the City of Farmington.

In 1935 The Kyro family lived at 4631 Second Blvd. The Finnish Lutheran Church was the center of Finnish social life in Detroit. The Kyro family was affiliated with the Finnish Lutheran Church and often attended social events at the church building. 

During the 1930’s the Finnish people in Detroit organized a summer camp at Loon Lake (also called Sun Lake). This camp was organized as a cooperative planned community. Members were allowed to construct small cottages for use during vacations and weekends during the summer. These cottages were all nearly identical since they were required to follow a common plan. The Kyro family were members and owned one of these cottages. Two wooden docks were constructed to allow swimming, diving and boating. One dock had a high tower for diving into the water.

The Loon Lake summer camp also had a sauna. Although William Kyro never owned a sauna, all members of the Kyro family enjoyed this Finnish tradition at Loon Lake. John Dixon, at the age of three, was introduced to the sauna at Loon Lake.

A little later, another Finnish summer camp was organized at Cass Lake. It was owned by a Finnish group called “The Ladies of Kaleva” and named Kaleva Park. The land at Cass Lake was obtained for a low price since it was low and wet. It was necessary to fill in the swampy land with dirt and sand taken from a large hill on the property. Erick Kyro helped with the work of moving the sand. A beach was constructed along the lake shore to allow swimming and boating. A wooden swimming float was constructed. The float contained 55 gallon metal drums to provide buoyancy. The float was anchored about 150 feet out in the lake where the water was about 15 feet deep. A dance hall was constructed to provide space for Finnish celebrations and gatherings. A few cottages were constructed that could be rented by the week for summer vacations.

These summer camps were located northwest of Detroit at a distance of 15 or 20 miles. During the 1930s and the following decades the Kyro family often spent Sunday afternoons swimming and picnicking at one or the other of these camps.
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The Knights and Ladies of Kaleva

In 1937, a summer place on Cass Lake was purchased from James Vehkola. After his death, it was called Vehkola Park. The swampy shore of the lake was filled with thousands of loads of earth and made into a pleasant area for festivals and leisure activities. The most conspicuous summer event there was the bonfire on midsummer Eve, in keeping with the custom bought from Finland. The name of the park was later changed to Kaleva Park. 

In 2010 the property is being developed into a 10 plat homestead by the Champs-Elysse  real  company. 
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